HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Date: Thursday 2 July 2020
Time: 5.00 pm
Venue: Microsoft Teams – please click here
Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov
Members of the Committee
Listed on next page
Substitute Members
Listed on next page
Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact: Adrian Bentley, Democratic
Services Officer, Telephone: 020 7926 7162; Email: abentley@lambeth.gov.uk
How to access the meeting
This meeting will be held in accordance with Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020 and the related
Regulations which details that members of the public and press be provided access to the meeting
through remote means, such as video conferencing and live streaming as provided by the link above.
For Members of the Public
This is a Microsoft Teams Live Event meeting. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking the link above
will take you to the meeting page where you will be prompted to download the app or watch on the web
instead. Please follow the instructions to watch on the web instead. On doing so, you can join our live
event anonymously.
Members of the public wishing to make representations at this meeting must contact Adrian Bentley,
Democratic Services Officer (contact details above) by 12pm on Tuesday 30 June.
For Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board
Please refer to the guidance you have already received – do not use the link above.
For elected Members of the Council
Councillors who are not members of the Health and Wellbeing Board but wish to attend the meeting must
inform Democratic Services by 12pm on Tuesday 30 June.
Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. Contact details are shown on the front page of each report.
@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

Representative

Post

Substitute

Lambeth Council:
Councillor Jim Dickson
(Chair)
Councillor Danny Adilypour
Councillor Ed Davie
Councillor Sonia Winifred

Andrew Eyres

Fiona Connolly
Ruth Hutt
Merlin Joseph

Cabinet Member for Health and
Adult Social Care (job share)
Cabinet Member for Health and
Adult Social Care (job share)
Cabinet Member for Children
and Young People
Cabinet Member for Culture and
Equalities
Strategic Director, Integrated
Health & Care
Lambeth Council
NHS South East London CCG
(Lambeth)
Executive Director Adult Social
Care
Director of Public Health
Strategic Director of Children’s
Services

Vacant
Councillor Jennifer
Brathwaite
Councillor Jacqui Dyer
Councillor Malcolm Clark

Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

South East London Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG):
Dr Adrian McLachlan (ViceChair)

Andrew Bland

Dr Dianne Aitken

GP and Governing Body
Member NHS SEL CCG, clinical
lead for Lambeth Living Well
Network Alliance
NHS South East London
Commissioning Alliance STP
Lead
GP and Assistant Chair NHS
SEL CCG, clinical lead for
Lambeth Neighbourhood &
Wellbeing Delivery Alliance

To be advised

To be advised

To be advised

National Commissioning Board:

Dr Jane Fryer

Medical Director and
Responsible Officer (South
London) NHS England (London
Region)

King’s Health Partners:
Jill Lockett

Managing Director
King's Health Partners

Healthwatch Lambeth:
Sarah Corlett & Catherine
Pearson

Healthwatch Lambeth

To be advised

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING
Page
Nos.

1.

Declarations of Interest

Under section 4 of the governance arrangements for the Health &
Wellbeing Board, Board members are bound by the Members’ Code
of Conduct as set out in the Council’s Constitution (Part 4 Section
1). Where any Board member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest
in any matter to be considered at a Board meeting they must
withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of the
consideration of that matter and must not participate in any vote on
that matter unless a dispensation has been obtained from the
Monitoring Officer.
2.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

1-8

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting.
3.

COVID 19 - Epidemiology

4.

COVID 19 -Perspectives from the community

5.

King's Health Partners: Response to COVID-19

6.

Lambeth Outbreak Control Plan

7.

Lambeth Children's Partnership update

9 - 24

25 - 32

33 - 42

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.
Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the website
www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Public involvement
The Board has agreed principles for involving citizens (please contact Democratic Services for further
information: democracy@lambeth.gov.uk, 020 7926 2170 or contact officer listed on the front page of this
agenda).

Public Notice Questions (PNQs)
The Board welcomes the submission of public notice questions on its work (please contact Democratic
Services for further information: 020 7926 2170 or number on the front page). In summary the rules are:












PNQs may be submitted to each ordinary Board meeting by persons living, working, studying or
using health services in the borough;
each PNQ must include the name, address, email address and telephone number(s) (the name of
the questioner will be published on the agenda (this may be withheld from publication in
reasonable circumstances);
each question may be addressed to a particular Board Member or will otherwise be referred to the
relevant Board Member by the Secretary;
PNQs must be submitted by the published deadline (seven clear days before the meeting). ;
there are grounds to reject a submitted PNQ;
accepted PNQs will be published on the agenda (in the order received) and referred to the Board
Member for them to prepare an answer. However, where a questioner has submitted more than
one question, all “first” questions will be taken first, “second” questions will be taken next and so
on;
at the meeting, the Board member will give an oral answer to the question. The questioner may
ask one supplementary question, which must be relevant to the original question or answer given;
and,
after the meeting, Democratic Services will write to the questioner with the answer(s) given.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

HWB
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Thursday 13 February 2020 at 6.00 pm
MINUTES

PRESENT:

Andrew Eyres, Councillor Sonia Winifred, Councillor Jim Dickson
(Chair), Ruth Hutt, Fiona Connolly, Adrian McLaughlan, Catherine
Pearson, Annie Hudson, Angela Dawe and Councillor Edward Davie

APOLOGIES:

Dr Nandini Mukhopadhyay and Jane Fryer

ALSO PRESENT:

Action
required by
1.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were none.
2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 17 October 2019
be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record of the
proceedings.
3.

LAMBETH TOGETHER

Andrew Eyres, Strategic Director Integrated Health and Care,
presented this item directing Board members toward the
presentation provided, which drew out the critical work that was
being done.
There were over 20 outcomes identified in the Borough Plan, eight of
which were being delivered by Lambeth Together directly. There
were an additional 17 outcomes where Lambeth Together was

Page 2
involved indirectly in delivery.
Lambeth Together was a way of working together (the Lambeth
Together way), organising services around people and places (the
Delivery Alliance) and bringing things together as a whole system
delivered through a single budget and business plan (Strategic
Alliance and Leadership).
The Delivery Alliances were comprised of the Living Well Network
Alliance, Neighbourhood and Wellbeing Delivery Alliance, Children
and Young people Alliance and Complex Personalised Support.
The Neighbourhood and Wellbeing Delivery Alliance was likely to be
the most complex Alliance as it involved bringing together a raft of
partners. The vision was to improve the Health and Wellbeing of
local services through an integrated ways of working from Borough
to Neighbourhood and local people.
Community Neighbourhood nursing services were transitioning to
smaller self-managed teams. Nine Primary Care Networks (PCN)
had been established to encourage greater collaboration between
primary care practices.
Joint working has taken places between the NHS staff and
community liaison workers and Portuguese speaking community
organisations.
Over 120 health and care professionals had been trained to work in
interdisciplinary ways, resulting in greater confidence in care
coordination and enhanced patient care, leadership, team working,
self-care and resilience.
80 community connectors at street and neighbourhood level had
been developed under Project Smith and this had shown
demonstrable benefits and a social return on investment of between
£1.31 and £5.32 for every £1 spent.
From April the Lambeth Together Strategic Board would be in place.
The Diversity of voices needed to be improved and there was much
to be done in terms of engagement.
It had been proposed that the change to new governance
arrangements provided an opportunity to refresh the Lambeth
Together Pledge.
The Chair asked Richard Davis from Integrate Agency to address
the Board to talk about the integration work being done by the
agency. Integrate had carried out a listening exercise asking what an
organisation that was looking after the communities needed to do.
People had been visited and there had been borough level surgeries
every two weeks. There had been surgeries with Portuguese groups
and efforts were being made to meet other groups who in the past

Page 3
had not been engaged.
Following Comments from the Board it was noted that:


Integrate had grown organically and had 1400 contacts.
Newsletters had been circulated.



Integrate were working closely with Lambeth Made. Work had
also been done on serious youth violence.

Question
A question was received from Ms Nicola Kingston and she was
asked to address this to the Board. She noted that:
The Lambeth Patient Participation Group (PPG) was being closed
down and the members had been told that they would be involved in
discussion of the £74k that was being spent. Ms Kingston asked if
the group could be involved in the future decision making for that
money and sought assurance that they be involved in coming up
with options and discussions as to how decisions are made.
Ms Kingston noted the two papers that had been sent out for the
engagement in the single CCP and one in the integrated care
system going forward. No borough based meetings had yet taken
place.
The Board commented:
The board agreed with the views of Ms Kingston. Existing ways of
working were coming to an end and this allowed the chance to do
things differently. The south East London integrated care system
engagement papers had not worked as an opportunity but these
were not the finished article and could be improved.
The papers had been circulated at an early stage and views on the
papers were sought. It would be checked if these had been sent to
the PPG.
Whilst it was sad that the PPG network was finishing the PPG itself
wasn’t going and opportunities existed and should be seized.
RESOLVED
The Board noted the presentation.
4.

FUTURE OF THE LAMBETH HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Ruth Hutt, Director of Public Health, thanked those that had
contributed to the Health and Wellbeing Development session. She
noted the options set out in the paper provided.
There was consensus that the meeting should be changed to further
reflect the community’s voice. This would involve a wider
membership.

Page 4
There was a need to decide processes and resource capacity.
Measurers of success would involve actions and outputs being
followed up and ensuring a forum that was accountable to the public
that gave an opportunity to provide feedback.
A smaller working group would be set up to develop criteria, work out
resource capacity and develop Terms of Reference.
It was recommended that there be two or three new style meeting in
1920-21.
The Board commented:


It was suggested that the new Boards took place around the
Borough to ensure community involvement.



The culture and equalities gap needed to be filled. Whilst
Black Thrive had been involved there was a need to include
black participants from wider groups.



It was said that the thematic meetings had been successful in
the past in securing wider engagement. It was suggested that
the Neighbourhood pilots be matched.



There was a need to go to the community in a smaller way
and finding other ways of bringing back their voices.



The timings of the meeting were difficult for people and should
be experimented with.

RESOLVED
The recommendation contained in the report were approved.
5.

SOUTH EAST LONDON COMMISSIONING ALLIANCE

Andrew Eyres, Strategic Director Integrated Health and Care,
presented a paper providing a summary of recent key system
developments within south east London. He highlighted that:


Richard Douglas CB has been appointed as the chair of the
South East London ICS.



Adrian McLachlan had been appointed to the SEL CCG
Governing Body Board



Draft Terms of reference for the Lambeth Together Strategic
Board were subject to review and there was still time to
comment.

RESOLVED
(1) The new Chair of the ICS would be invited to a meeting of the
Health and Wellbeing Board.

Page 5
(2) The Board noted the report and agreed the recommendations
6.

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH QUARTERLY REPORT

Ruth Hutt, Director of Public Health, presented the report, noting
that:


Actions form the Poverty Summit were appended to the
report.



The Eat Them to Defeat Them campaign had been very
popular and there were plans to do more.



Sugar Smart and Fizz Free February campaigns were being
run.



Pandemic Flu Plans had been revised and were being double
checked due to the Coronavirus. Plans had not yet been
activated.



English Indices of Deprivation (IMD 2019) showed that levels
of deprivation in the Borough were improving. However levels
of income inequality remained poor.

The Board commented, noting:


There had been a lot of good work done and the Poverty
and Health summit was a highlight.



Guys and SLaM were now accredited and LLW compliant.



The number of detox beds was an issue and there were
no medically supported detox beds within the M25.



There was a need to think what could be done to deal with
the anti-Chinese racism that had developed following the
Coronavirus. National work was being done by VCS
organisations to reach out to the Chinese community and
allow a mechanism to report racist incidents.



Immunisation was a growing issue and it was suggested
that talking services be used in schools to pass the
messages of the importance of immunisation. Meningitis
and HPV discussion already took place in schools but take
up was not as good as it could be.

RESOLVED
The report was noted.
7.

SUICIDE PREVENTION UPDATE

David Orekoya presented a report a report and slides giving detail on

Page 6
the on the Suicide Prevention Strategy.
A 10% target for reduction in suicides had been set and achieved (a
drop of 24 people to 19 people dying by suicide annually. It was
though too early to tell if this was a trend or just a statistical blip.
Efforts were being made to encourage black men to talk about
mental health
Cllr Lindsay was the suicide prevention champion for Lambeth.
There were cross cutting priorities for 2020-21. These were to:


focus on people who are vulnerable due to economic
circumstances & BAME groups (debt, poverty)



focus on men (cross-cutting) particularly those facing
isolation



improve crisis offer for children and young people & selfharm awareness targeted at 16 – 24 year old girls (work
with schools/colleges)



improve service offer for people with co-occurring
substance misuse and mental health issues



run GP training through Maudsley Learning



recruit/activate organisational suicide prevention
champions



Promote Zero Suicide on-line training.

Suicide prevention training was open to schools and teachers

RESOLVED
The Board noted the report and presentation.
8.

LAMBETH CHILDREN'S PARTNERSHIP UPDATE

Annie Hudson, Strategic Director for Children’s Services presented
the paper on the Children and Young People partnership.
RESOLVED
(1) The Board noted the paper.
(2) The Board gave thanks to Annie Hudson as this would be her
final meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board,
CLOSE OF MEETING

Page 7
The meeting ended at 8pm
CHAIR

Contact for Enquiries: Adrian Bentley
Tel: 020 7926 7162
Fax: 020 7926 2361
E-mail: abentley@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk
The action column is for officers' use only and does not form a part of the formal
record.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 9

Agenda Item 3

Health and Wellbeing Board 13 February 2020
Report title: The Epidemiology of COVID-19 in Lambeth
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Health & Social Care Councillors Jim Dickson & Danial Adilypour
Report Authorised by: Andrew Eyres: Strategic Director Adults & Health
Contact for enquiries: Ruth Hutt, Director of Public Health (Rhutt@lambeth.gov.uk); Hiten Dodhia,
Consultant in Public Health (hdodhia@lambeth.gov.uk)

Report summary

A high-level description of the distribution, patterns and determinants of COVID-19 (the
epidemiology) in Lambeth, within the wider national and London context is presented.
Further work is planned in relation to analysis around the disparities in risk and outcomes locally
and in developing a surveillance data set to provide current data in relation to COVID cases,
admissions, deaths and outbreaks in order inform pro-active local outbreak control.
summary:

Current ddistribution, patterns and determinants of COVID-19 (the epidemiology) in Lambeth,
within reference to wider national and London context.

Finance summary
None arising from this report

Recommendations
This paper is for information and to seek support for future work proposed in this area including:
1.
2.

Ongoing collection and analysis of local data in relation to disparities in COVID-19 risk and
outcomes, in order to inform actions to address inequalities locally.
Development of a local surveillance dataset to provide up to date information on COVID-19 cases,
admissions, deaths and local outbreaks to inform local outbreak control.

1

Page 10

1.

Context

1.1

COVID-19 is a new disease caused by the SARs-Cov2 virus. It first spread to humans in the Wuhan
Province of China in December 2019. The WHO declared it a worldwide pandemic on 11 March
2020. As the COVID-19 pandemic has progressed increasingly detailed information on the
epidemiology of the disease locally, nationally and internationally has developed.

1.2

Understanding the patterns of the disease will help inform future policy decisions and evidencebased practice by identifying risk factors and targets for preventive healthcare as well as inform the
ongoing support response needed, particularly for those most vulnerable in the Borough.

1.3

As at 18/06/20 there have been 300,469 laboratory confirmed cases of COVID-19 in the UK and
42,288 deaths. However, there have been approximately 64,500 ‘excess deaths’ (deaths from all
causes that exceed the five-year average for the time of year) – which represents a fuller picture of
the impact of the pandemic on mortality nationally as it also includes those deaths that may have
been due to undiagnosed COVID and those that may have occurred as a result of other pandemic
impacts such as changes to access to healthcare services.

1.4

In Lambeth there have been 1219 confirmed cases as at 17/06/201. 275 COVID-19 deaths have
been registered (COVID-19 mentioned on the death certificate) to date up to 05/06/202.

1.5

The impacts of the disease are of course much broader than just mortality and long term health for
survivors, mental health and wellbeing impacts of lockdown and isolation, delays to other routine
and elective healthcare and individual financial resilience, employment and the wider economy are
just some of the areas where adverse impacts are already evident.

1.6

Everyone is susceptible to COVID-19 infection but there is clear evidence that it does not affect all
population groups equally3 and also that the impact of the pandemic and measures to control are
widening existing inequalities. Inequality in disease impact is seen across age, gender, ethnicity,
occupation, deprivation and pre-existing conditions4. Care home residents have also been
particularly affected.

1.7

This report particularly relates to the Future Lambeth: Our Borough Plan 2016-2021 aim to reduce
inequality. By reviewing the epidemiology we can consider how to mitigate the impact of the
pandemic on those most vulnerable and seek to reduce inequality in the Borough.

1.8

There have been a number of recent national developments in terms of phased easing of some of
the ‘lockdown’ measures, change in alert level (see Figure 1) from 4 to 3 (on 19/06/20) and the
implementation of the Test and Trace service (on 28/05/20) as well as encouraging news on effective
treatments. The characteristics of the pandemic will continue to evolve in response to these and
many other factors and therefore we will continue to review the pattern of disease nationally and
locally and adapt our response accordingly. A local outbreak plan is currently in development and
will be informed by ongoing disease surveillance.

1

Data from PHE Centre Weekly COVID-19 Report - Week 25 report for London PHE Centre

2https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/causesofdeath/datasets/deathregistrationsandocc

urrencesbylocalauthorityandhealthboard
3 Public Health England (2020) Beyond the Data: Understanding the Impact of COVID-19 on BAME Communities
4 Public Health England (2020) Disparities in the risk and outcomes of COVID-19

2

Page 11

Figure 1: COVID Alert levels

2.

Proposal and Reasons

Note: This paper covers a description of COVID-19 epidemiology locally, in the context of the London and
national picture for information. Areas of current and future analysis are highlighted. A specific proposal
is not outlined.
2.1

COVID-19 Cases

There have been 1219 confirmed cases of COVID-19 in Lambeth up to 17/06/20. This of course only
captures those in our population who have been tested, and actual infection rates are likely to be higher
due to the presence of asymptomatic individuals or mildly (i.e. not requiring hospitalisation) symptomatic
individuals who have not been tested.
This represents a crude rate of 374 cases per 100,000 of our population. This is higher than the Londonwide rate of 307.3 and a rate of 282.4 for England. This could be influenced by a range of risk factors in
our Borough including population density, deprivation, population structure in terms of age, ethnicity and
prevalence of key long-term conditions for example diabetes, hypertension, heart disease or dementia. A
comparison of crude rates with London and the UK is represented below in Graph 1 (n.b. the area shaded
in grey contains provisional data and should therefore be interpreted with caution). It should be noted that
crude rates are not standardised for age (i.e. do not take account of different age structures between
Boroughs), nor do they take into account other relevant differing population characteristics such as
ethnicity.

3

Page 12

Graph 1: Cumulative confirmed cases of COVID-19 per 100,000 people in Lambeth as compared to the
median for all London Boroughs and all English Councils. Data Source: Public Health England
The daily cases have dropped significantly over time (Graph 2) and there have only been a total of 2 cases
reported in the Borough in the last 7 days (up to 17/06/19) of 121 in total in London over the same period.

Graph 2: Daily confirmed cases of COVID-19 Lambeth.
Data Source: Public Health England
Nationally daily cases have also reduced over time but numbers appear to now have plateaued (Graph 3).
4

Page 13

Graph 3: Daily new confirmed COVID cases (count) for the UK. Source: Department of Health and Social
Care, Welsh Government, Scottish Government, Northern Ireland Executive.
The Office for National Statistics (ONS), in collaboration with academic partners, is also conducting a
survey of households in England to understand how many people have COVID-19 at any one point in time.
The survey focuses on private households and excludes those living in care homes or currently in hospital.
Modelling of the trend over time shows evidence that the number of people in England testing positive has
decreased since the study began on 26 April, and suggests that the decline may have slowed in recent
weeks.
The current estimate (released on 18/06/20) is that an average of 1 in 1,700 individuals (0.06% of the
population) within the community population in England had COVID-19 at any given time between 31 May
and 13 June 2020. Given that this information is drawn from a small sample of the population nationally it
isn’t possible to infer directly what this means for the local picture, but is encouraging in terms of evidence
that current mechanisms to control the virus are having an impact.

Graph 4: Estimated % of the population in England who have had COVID-19 by week from 3 May - 13
June. Source: ONS

5

Page 14
2.1.1 Test and trace COVID-19 cases
NHS contact tracing went live on 28th May. The service ensures that anyone who develops symptoms of
coronavirus (COVID-19) can be tested to find out if they have the virus, and includes targeted
asymptomatic testing of NHS and social care staff and care home residents. The service will trace close
recent contacts of anyone who tests positive for coronavirus and, if necessary, notifies them that they must
self-isolate at home to help stop the spread of the virus.
As of 21st June, 33 people who tested positive for coronavirus (COVID-19) had their case transferred to
the contact tracing system, of those 23 (70%) were reached and asked to provide information about their
close recent contacts. 30 contacts were reported to the NHS Test and Trace of which 18 (60%) have selfregistered with NHS Test and Trace web tool following notification or been called and completed the NHS
Test and Trace form.
2.2

Mortality

275 COVID-19 deaths have been registered (COVID-19 mentioned on the death certificate) in Lambeth to
date up to 05/06/205 as per data collected by the Office of National Statistics (ONS).
The majority (81%) of these have occurred in hospital, 9% have occurred in care homes and 7% at home.
This is consistent with the national picture
Place of death
Care home
24

Elsewhere
0

Home
20

Hospice
6

Hospital
224

Other
establishment
1

communal

Table 1: COVID-19 death registrations in Lambeth (up to 05/06/20) by place of death.
Source: ONS
Slightly more up to date local data is available directly from the Registrar’s office (though it is not inclusive
of deaths of residents at all possible hospitals) and is represented below to demonstrate the trend in deaths
over time. Deaths, in line with cases, have reduced significantly over time. The last death registered
(provisional data) was on 10/06/20.
It is also important to note that there are differing sources of deaths data – if required further information
on sources of death figures and why they may differ can be found here.

5https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/causesofdeath/datasets/deathregistr

ationsandoccurrencesbylocalauthorityandhealthboard

6

Page 15

Graph 5: Registered deaths of Lambeth residents by day with COVID-19 on the death certificate.
Source: Lambeth Registrars Data

Graph 6: Cumulative confirmed COVID-19 cases and registered deaths of Lambeth residents.
Source: Public Health England & Lambeth Registrars Data
A detailed review of mortality in Lambeth, in the context of the national picture, has been undertaken and
can be found at Annex 1.
London Boroughs make up nine out of the top ten areas with the highest mortality rates where COVID-19
was mentioned on the death certificate, and as a region London has the highest rate (adjusted for age)
recorded of 137.6 deaths per 100,000 people across the last three months (March-May) of any region in
England or Wales. However, positively, the number of deaths involving COVID-19 has continued to
decrease across all regions with the number of deaths in London showing a particularly sharp decline with
a fall of 83.3% between April and May6.
6https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/deathsinvolvin

gcovid19bylocalareasanddeprivation/deathsoccurringbetween1marchand31may2020

7

Page 16
The death rate in Lambeth has reflected this London-wide trend as can be seen in Table 3.
Cause of death
All causes - Lambeth
All causes - London
COVID-19 - Lambeth
COVID-19 - London

March
139.0
107.6
47.1
27.8

April
197.3
178.3
101.6
94.1

May
69.9
65.9
18.2
15.7

Overall
406.2
347
166.9
137.6

Table 2: Age standardised death date per 100,000 population in London and Lambeth for all causes and
COVID-19 over time for deaths occurring between 1 March 2020 and 31 May 2020 and registered by 6
June 2020.
Source: ONS
In addition to deaths attributable to COVID-19, there has nationally been a significant increase in deaths
over and above those usually expected (excess deaths) over the course of the pandemic. These may be
due for example to atypical COVID presentations not diagnosed or other causes such as a change in
healthcare seeking behaviours or access to routine and elective care. This has not been fully reviewed at
local level as yet but is an area for future analysis. Nationally, excess deaths continue to decrease as
shown in Graph 7.

Graph 7: Number of deaths registered by week, England and Wales, 28 December 2019 to 5 June 2020.
Source: ONS
In addition to the data presented above, deaths within local acute Trusts are available daily from NHS
England. Though this data is not specific to Lambeth residents and only covers in hospital deaths, it is
very timely and so will form part of our ongoing surveillance data to assess the pattern of disease on an
ongoing basis.
2.3

Inequalities

A significant amount of analysis on disparities in the risk and outcomes from COVID-19 has been
undertaken at a national level by both ONS and Public Health England (PHE). It is evident from this
work that the impact of COVID-19 has replicated existing health inequalities and, in some cases,
increased them.
8

Page 17
Data at a local level has also been analysed to review inequalities across some dimensions (age, gender
ethnicity, deprivation) and work is ongoing to further understand the local picture.
Some degree of caution is however required in analysis of local data by these various dimensions as when
the data is segmented by different population characteristics actual numbers of cases or deaths can be
quite small in any individual category.
2.3.1 Age
National analysis highlights that age is the most significant risk factor for adverse outcomes from COVID19. Among people already diagnosed with COVID-19, people who were 80 or older were seventy times
more likely to die than those under 407.
This is also reflected at a local level where the death rate increases with age (Graph 8).

Crude Death Rate from COVID-19 by Age Band

2500

1984.0

Rate per 100,000

2000

1500

1440.5

1000

706.1
849.7

347.8

500
1.5

12.7

20to29

30to49

84.9

168.0

0
50to59

60to69

70to74

75to79

80to84

85to89

90+

Age Band

Graph 8: Crude death rate from COVID-19 by age band in Lambeth.
Source: Lambeth Registrars Data registered between 01/03/2020 - 16/06/2020
2.3.2 Gender
National analysis to date demonstrates that the risk of dying among those diagnosed with COVID-19 is
higher in males than females. Mortality among working age men is more than twice that of their female
counterparts. It isn’t yet known what may be driving this differential – and there may be numerous factors
for e.g. occupational exposure or differences in healthcare seeking behaviour.
This finding is replicated in Lambeth to some extent but not in all age groups as demonstrated below
(Graph 9).

7

Public Health England (2020) Disparities in the risk and outcomes of COVID-19

9

Page 18
Crude Death Rate COVID-19 by 10 year Age Band and Gender
2500
2,196

Rate per 100,000

Female
2000

Male
1,860

1500

1,330

1000

741
864

500

248
294
97

0
20to29

30to39

40to49

50to59

60to69

70to79

80to89

90+

Age Band

Graph 9: Crude death rate by age and gender in Lambeth.
Source: Lambeth Registrars Data registered between 01/03/2020 - 16/06/2020
2.3.3

Ethnicity

National analysis has highlighted significantly higher mortality rates from COVID-19 among certain ethnic
groups, most notably those of Black and Asian ethnic backgrounds.
ONS analysis of deaths from 2 March – 10 April8 indicated the Black and Bangladeshi/Pakistani population
have almost twice the risk as the White population of COVID-19 related death (Graph 10) even when
accounting for factors including





Geographical region
Socioeconomic status
Educational attainment
Self-reported health and disability

Graph 10: Risk of COVID-19 related death by ethnic group, compared to the white population. Source:
ONS

8https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/articles/coronavirusrelat

eddeathsbyethnicgroupenglandandwales/2march2020to10april2020

10

Page 19
There are many other factors that may be contributing to the unequal impact of COVID-19 on BAME groups
including those highlighted in a recent PHE report9 such as:
 Historic racism and poorer experiences of healthcare or at work
 Occupation
 Housing conditions
 Use of public transport
 Long term conditions/co-morbidities
A recent PHE analysis indicated that, amongst confirmed cases of COVID-19 (and after accounting for the
effect of sex, age, deprivation and region), people of Bangladeshi ethnicity had around twice the risk of
death than people of White British ethnicity. People of Chinese, Indian, Pakistani, Other Asian, Caribbean
and Other Black ethnicity had between 10% and 50% higher risk of death when compared to White British.
Ethnicity has not previously been recorded on death certificates, only place of birth. As a result, local
analysis has had to rely on this as a proxy measure for ethnicity for the time being – though ethnicity is
now being collected and an attempt at collecting this data retrospectively is in progress for COVID-19
deaths. Whilst fully acknowledged this is imperfect, the measure is perhaps a better proxy for the older
age groups whom COVID most impacts and overall trends are in line with national ethnicity analysis.
This local analysis indicates a notably increased crude death rate (not adjusted for age) for those born in
the Americas and Caribbean and Africa particularly as compared to those born in the UK and Europe.

Graph 11: Crude COVID-19 death rate by place of birth (all ages) in Lambeth.
Source: Lambeth Registrars Data registered between 01/03/2020 - 16/06/2020

This picture is broadly consistent across males and females but does change with age. In the older age
group of residents aged 65+ (Graph 10), the crude death rate is notably higher in those born in Africa,
whereas amongst younger individuals it is higher in those born in the Americas and Caribbean.

9

PHE (2020) Beyond the data: Understanding the impact of COVID-19 on BAME groups

11

Page 20

Graph 12: Crude COVID-19 death rate by place of birth for those aged 65+ years in Lambeth.
Source: Lambeth Registrars Data registered between 01/03/2020 - 16/06/2020

2.3.4 Deprivation
People who live in deprived areas have higher diagnosis rates and death rates than those living in less
deprived areas. The mortality rates from COVID-19 in the most deprived areas of England (between 1
March and 31 May) are more than double that in the least deprived areas10.
The local picture is very much consistent with this finding (Graph 12) with an even greater disparity found
between the most and least deprived areas in Lambeth. The disparity is particularly marked for females
in the Borough – with mortality for women in the most deprived areas of the Borough 4.7 times more likely
than in the least deprived, whereas for males it is 1.7 times more likely.

Crude death rate Covid-19 by local quintile of deprivation, all ages
140

Rate per 100,000

120

119.2

100

88.7

80

56.4

60

55.2

46.2

40
20
0

Most
deprived

1

2

3

4

Quintile of deprivation

5

Least
deprived

10https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/deathsinvolvi

ngcovid19bylocalareasanddeprivation/deathsoccurringbetween1marchand31may2020

12

Page 21
Graph 12: Crude COVID-19 death rate by quintile of deprivation in Lambeth (all ages).
Source: Lambeth Registrars Data.

2.3.5

Geography

Local authorities with the highest diagnoses and death rates are mostly urban. Death rates in London
from COVID-19 are more than three times higher than in the South West of England for example11.
2.3.6 Long-Term Conditions & Disability
The majority of those dying from COVID-19 have had multiple underlying health conditions, including
cardiovascular diseases, diabetes, COPD (chronic obstructive pulmonary disease) and dementia.
Underlying health conditions have been observed in 90% of all COVID-19 related deaths, with the average
case having more than two pre-existing conditions12.
Several studies also report an increased risk of adverse outcomes in obese or morbidly obese people13.
The ONS has recently published COVID-19 death rates by disability14 (where disability was defined by the
2011 census question “Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or disability
which has lasted, or is expected to last, at least 12 months?”) which has indicated higher death rates for
those identifying a disability (Graph 12).

Graph 13: Rates of deaths (per 100,000 population, accounting for age) involving COVID-19 by
disability status and gender, all ages, England and Wales: 2 March 2020 to 15 May 2020.
Source: ONS
Whilst consistent with the London-wide picture, the Borough does have significant numbers of people
with relevant long-term conditions in our total population – highlighting some of our at-risk population
groups.
11https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/deathsinvolvi

ngcovid19bylocalareasanddeprivation/deathsoccurringbetween1marchand17april
12https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/deathsinvolvi
ngcovid19englandandwales/deathsoccurringinapril2020#pre-existing-conditions-of-people-who-died-with-covid-19
13 https://www.nature.com/articles/s41574-020-0364-6
14https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/articles/coronaviruscov
id19relateddeathsbydisabilitystatusenglandandwales/2marchto15may2020

13

Page 22
Condition

Number of People - Rate (per 100,000) - Rate (per 100,000)
Lambeth
Lambeth
London

Diabetes
(diagnosed
and undiagnosed)
Hypertension (GP data)
Dementia (GP data)
Heart Disease (GP
data)
Obesity 18yrs + (GP
data)

24,092 (estimated)

8.9

8.9

38,665
1,590
4,940

9.4
0.4
1.2

11
0.5
2

24,015

7

8.1

Table 3: Prevalence of Diabetes, Hypertension (high blood pressure), Dementia, Heart Disease and
adult Obesity in Lambeth and London. Source: Public Health Outcomes Framework
2.3.7 Occupation
Those in public facing roles such as care workers, security guards, and transport workers have higher
COVID-19 mortality15. Men working in the lowest skilled occupations had the highest rate of death
involving COVID-19. For many occupations however the number of deaths is too small to draw meaningful
conclusions from, even at a national level. In addition, staff within broad occupational groups may have
differing levels of exposure due to the nature of their specific roles, particularly during a pandemic.

2.3.8 Care Homes
PHE analysis indicates there has been 2.3 times the number of deaths in care homes than expected
between 20 March and 7 May, when compared to previous years.16 The UK has seen particularly high
mortality in care homes when compared to other countries (and indeed high mortality more generally).
Almost half of the excess deaths seen in care homes up to early May were identified as related to COVID19, suggesting there had been an increase in other causes of death, or an under- reporting of COVID-19.
ONS data indicates that 24 deaths occurring in Lambeth care homes attributed to COVID-19 have been
registered up to 05/06/2020, of 275 total COVID deaths in the Borough.
Care home and other care facility residents have made up a significant proportion of our total deaths
(wherever their place of death) with 19% of those who have died previously resident in a care home, 5%
in retirement homes and 5% in hospices. Care home residents are a particularly vulnerable population
given the risk factors outlined in relation to age, underlying conditions and also the potential for infection
spread within care home environments.
39.5% (17/43) of Lambeth care homes have reported a COVID-19 outbreak (week commencing 09/03/2001/06/20)17. For comparison, 41% of care homes in England and 45.8% of London care homes have
reported an outbreak over the same period.

2.3.9 Other Groups
Nationally, when compared to previous years, there has been a larger increase in deaths among
people born outside the UK. This is consistent with the picture in Lambeth presented under 2.3.3.

15https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/causesofdeath/bulletins/coronavirus

covid19relateddeathsbyoccupationenglandandwales/deathsregistereduptoandincluding20april2020
16https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/892085/dispari
ties_review.pdf
17https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/covid-19-number-of-outbreaks-in-care-homes-management-information

14

Page 23
Higher diagnoses are also expected among those with no fixed abode and rough sleepers, though
total numbers are too small to draw firm conclusions.

3.

Finance

No finance implications arising from this report, though the pandemic has wide-ranging and on-going
financial impacts on residents, local businesses and the Council.
4.

Legal and Democracy

There are no specific legal comments arising
5.

Consultation and co-production

Not applicable to the production of this paper, however stakeholder and resident engagement is an
essential element of the Local Outbreak Plan in development.

6.

Risk management

Not applicable.

7.

Equalities impact assessment

This report highlights inequalities in the impact of COVID-19.
8.

Community safety

No direct implications from this report, though it should be noted that the evidence in relation to the
differential impact of COVID-19 on BAME groups nationally highlights the role institutional racism plays in
health outcomes. This has been thrown into sharp relief following the murder of George Floyd in the U.S
and subsequent demonstrations in the UK. Conversely, the risks of such protests in terms of virus spread
have to be considered, including on those disproportionately at risk of adverse outcomes from COVID-19
as outlined.

9.

Organisational implications

Health
This paper outlines the current understanding of the epidemiology of COVID-19 locally, and in the London
and national context where relevant. This information forms part of the foundation for the priorities and
actions of the Public Health Team but also informs the organisation more broadly in pandemic planning
and response, particularly with regard health inequalities
.
10. Timetable for implementation
10.1 Not applicable

15

Page 24
Audit Trail
Name/Position
Councillor Jim Dickson
Andrew Eyres

Lambeth
directorate
/
department or partner
Cabinet Member for Health and
social care
Strategic Director for Integrated
Health and care
Corporate Resources

Pete Hesketh, Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Corporate Resources
Services
Ruth Hutt
Director of Public Health

Date Sent

Date
Received

23/06/20

23/06/20

23/06/20

24/06/20

23/06/20

24/06/20

23/06/20

23/06/20

23/06/20

23/06/20

Comments in
paragraph:

throughout

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?

15.06.20
24.06.20
24.06.20
No

Key decision report

No

Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons

N/A
N/A

Background information

Public Health England:
 COVID-19: review of disparities in risks and
outcomes
 Beyond the data: Understanding the impact of
COVID-19 on BAME groups
Office for National Statistics
 Deaths involving COVID-19, England and
Wales: deaths occurring in April 2020

Appendices

Appendix A – Mortality Report-COVID 19 Deaths in
Lambeth

16

Page 25

Agenda Item 5

Health and Wellbeing Board 2 July 2020
Report title: King’s Health Partners Response to COVID-19
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Members for Adults and Health: Cllr Jim Dickson and Cllr Danial Adilypour
Report Authorised by: Ruth Hutt, Director of Public Health - London Borough of Lambeth
Contact for enquiries: Jill Lockett, Director - Managing Director, King's Health Partners

Report summary
The attached report provides an overview of King’s Health Partners response to Covid 19.

Finance summary
None arising from this report.

Recommendations
1.
The Health and Wellbeing Board notes the update.

1

Page 26
1.
1.1

2.
2.1

Context
Contained in the attached report.

Proposal and Reasons
Contained in the attached report.

3.

Finance
There are no financial implications arising from this report

4.

Legal and Democracy
There are no legal implications arising from this report

5.
5.1

Consultation and co-production
Not applicable

6.

Risk management

6.1

No risk management issues arising from this report

7.

Equalities impact assessment

7.1

Not applicable

8.

Community safety

8.1

No community safety issues arising from this report

9.

Organisational implications
None

10.

Timetable for implementation

10.1 This report provides a summary of what has already been achieved in 2018-2019.

Audit Trail
Consultation
Comments
in para:

2

Page 27

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
24.06.20
Date final report sent
24.06.20
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential No
accompanying report?
Key decision report

No

Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

3

Page 28

4

Page 29

King’s Health Partners: Response to COVID-19
London’s health systems and research universities have been at the epicentre of the UK’s COVID-19 outbreak. London
has the highest proportion (39.1%) of deaths involving the coronavirus (COVID-19) of any region in England between
1 March and 31 May 2020. Nine of the ten local authorities with the highest age-standardised mortality rates were
London boroughs (one of which is Lambeth). (Source: Office for National Statistics, 12 June 2020 release)
King’s Health Partners brings together three NHS Foundation Trusts – Guy’s and St Thomas, King’s College Hospital,
and South London and Maudsley – with the university King’s College London. Our partners have been at the forefront
of the local and national response, including:







Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust is the lead site for the UK respiratory High-Consequence Infectious
Diseases (HCID) network and the only HCID site with a commissioned adult and paediatric Extracorporeal
Membrane Oxygenation (ECMO) unit. It saw the first COVID-19 cases and co-ordinated the national response.
Kings College Hospital NHS Trust has opened a portfolio of more than 20 COVID-19 research studies including
both arms of the Gilead Remdesivir trials (first UK site to open and recruit).
South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust has led national research on the mental health
consequences of COVID-19, and recently held an Urgent South London Mental Health Prevention Summit with
Croydon, Lambeth, Lewisham and Southwark local authorities.
King’s College London has repurposed academic teams and facilities to support the response to COVID-19,
including providing testing facilities, as well as redeploying clinical academic staff to front-line roles within NHS
partners.

The following provides an overview of the response to COVID-19 across clinical care, education and training, and
research.
Key Facts







1

3,200 patients treated at King’s Health Partners (as at 31 May), of which over 500 were admitted to
intensive care; approximately 50 ECMO referrals from other NHS hospitals.
3,300 (GSTT/KCH)1 patients/participants recruited to “Chief Medical Officer priority” clinical trials, including
NHS CHECK; ISARIC 4-C; REALIST; TACTIC; RECOVERY; ACCORD; REMAP-CAP; PRIEST; DIAMONDS; UKOSS;
GenOMICC; ACTT; Coronavirus infection in immunosuppressed children study; Oxford Vaccine Study; more
than55 COVID-19 trials underway.
2 members of Scientific Advisory Group for Emergencies (SAGE) from King’s Health Partners; Senior Advisor
to Lords Science and Technology Select Committee on COVID-19; Membership of the antibody taskforce;
Membership of an advisory panel on UK Research and Innovation funding of COVID-19-related research.
Extensive ongoing longitudinal collections of samples from patients during and after recovery from COVID19. For example,100 patients with COVID-19at St Thomas’ Hospital have had high resolution
immunophenotyping, including cellular and humoral responses; Guy’s and St Thomas’ has assembled a
serum bank of over 2,300 samples from 400 patients over a 60 day window from the start of the outbreak,
and bi-weekly serum samples from 250 healthcare worker staff since mid-March (of which, approximately
40 staff have had COVID-19 symptoms or been swab positive). This has provided a key resource to assess
new technologies in both hospitalised and relatively-well people.

Including sample collection studies; not including “data provision only” studies.

Page 30

NHS Support














172 clinical academics/fellows and 11 management staff seconded to the NHS from King’s College London.
50 non-clinical staff from NHS Research & Development teams (including Biomedical Research Centre and
Clinical Research Network staff) have been part- or fully-redeployed to support the COVID-19 response and
research.
All academic trainees have been redeployed from academic placements into front line clinical services.
Expanding our NHS Virology & Pathology offer to support testing in staff and residents in care homes.
Including an extra 2000 tests for Lambeth care homes since May. Launching a new university NHSaccredited COVID-19 diagnostics centre, the June Almeida Laboratory at Guy’s, to support testing for new
elective pathways post Covid and development of a new NHS & University enhanced testing offer for NHS E
& PHE Mass Testing capacity for London.
Creation of the Life Lines project, which allows family to see and speak to patients in intensive care units
using “virtual visiting” via a tablet using a secure online platform. More than 1,100 devices have been
provided, to 175 hospitals across the UK, enabled by more than £2.2m donations from major philanthropy
and members of the public.
Repurposing of university and research space for NHS use, including NIHR Clinical Research Facilities (CRF)
used by NHS for recovering COVID-19 patients; using medical simulation facilities for COVID-19 training (for
existing staff and “returning” clinicians, with over 400 surge nurses trained), alongside other teaching spaces
made available; transfer of high-end equipment to NHS (e.g. Quant Studio 7 and Tecan robot); repurposing
of space for front-line staff rest and wellbeing support; provision of accommodation for NHS staff in student
residences; storage of NHS equipment and materials.
Antibody testing: comprehensive evaluation of multiple technologies (lateral flow devices, ELISA,
nanoparticle), enabling King’s Health Partners to be the first to communicate COVID-19 serology results to
staff as part of pilot studies, with the first routine clinical serology service being introduced imminently.
Palliative care: Cicely Saunders Institute of Palliative Care at King’s College London funded jointly by the
Department of Health and Social Care with the National Institute for Health Research (NIHR) to lead a national
project optimising delivery, workforce deployment and symptom management for patients and their
families/carers; 500 staff across KHP trained; clinical guidelines produced for palliative care for hospital inpatients with COVID-19; rapid evaluation undertaken of the COVID-19 pandemic response by palliative and
end of life care, and patient/family priorities; use of research expertise to create guidance for managing
breathlessness at home, with high levels of engagement online (more than 55,000 impressions, and over 7,000
engagements).

Research
King’s Health Partners research community responded extremely rapidly to the emerging COVID-19 outbreak, with
more than £800,000 of pilot funding (from Wellcome and NIHR Biomedical Research Centres) allocated in March to
40 projects, from a wide range of disciplines. Examples of research programmes are provided here:
Therapeutic development:





Early-phase clinical trials of treatments for COVID-19-related Acute Respiratory Distress Syndrome and
hyperinflammation (including C5 complement inhibitors, mesenchymal stromal cells, lipid encapsulated nonsteroidal anti-inflammatory drugs, inhaled heparin, ruxolitinib).
Joint leadership of UK clinical trial of convalescent plasma (blood from recovered patients).
High-throughput screening of FDA/EMA-approved drugs to prevent/treat COV-2 infection, using infection
assays: pseudotypes (HIV/MLV), replication-competent isolates, reverse genetics.

Page 31





Novel AAV gene therapy to knock-down SARS-CoV-2 RNA, using existing platform.
Isolation and characterisation of neutralising monoclonal antibodies from recovered patients.
2 major programmes on rapid production of cost-effective ventilator technology (now being directed to
global health effort), including OxVent ventilator programme (in partnership with Oxford).

Mental health:





Creation of national NHS CHECK study to establish a cohort of more than 60,000 NHS staff to investigate the
short-, medium- and longer-term psychosocial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.
KCL CHECK study, with a cohort of 2,500 recruited across King’s College London to understand effects of
COVID-19 on mental health, wellbeing and life-work balance, with infection and immunity monitoring being
added shortly to understand SARS-CoV-2 prevalence, transmission and health outcomes, including renewed
outbreaks of the future, in a densely populated urban environment.
Repeated Assessment of Mental health in Pandemics study, measuring the mental health and wellbeing of
the UK population throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, and examining factors influencing these aspects.

Diagnostics and prognosis/stratification:








The COVID-19 Symptom Tracker App has recruited more than 3.6m people across the UK, aiming to identify
how fast the virus is spreading in each area, the highest-risk areas in the country, and who is most at risk, by
better understanding symptoms linked to underlying health conditions (summary in Science). This has
already generated major insights, including identification of loss of smell/taste as a significant symptom of
COVID-19; discovery that symptoms including fever, fatigue and anosmia, have genetic influences (genetics
50% responsible for the presentation of key symptoms of COVID-19); development of Artificial Intelligence
diagnostic to predict COVID-19 without testing, based on symptoms (published in Nature Medicine).
Testing and validation of point-of-care sero-diagnostics for antibody response at St Thomas’ Hospital,
including Attomarker antibody test (partnership between Exeter and Kng’s College London/Guy’s and St
Thomas’): a rapid (10 minute) portable device that quantifies antibody levels (IgM, IgA or IgG) using gold
nanoparticle-based immunoassay technology, deployable in a hand-held device ideally suited to community
testing.
Preventing Hospital Transmission: the King’s Health Partners Oxford Nanopore genome sequencing facility
has sequenced over 250 SARS-CoV2 isolates to identify ward clusters and are contributing to a national
clinical trial assessing the impact of sequencing on the prevention of hospital transmission (COG-HOCI).
Combining 10,000 standard chest X-rays, clinical data and Artificial Intelligence to create a ‘decision-support’
tool to help clinical staff predict the likelihood of needing ventilator support.

Understanding the mechanisms and effects of COVID-19:





COVID-IP: High-resolution immune-phenotyping of critically ill patients to better understand variation
between protective and failed immunity, informing clinical decision-making about treatment options, with
>200,000 data points recorded; identification of T cell depletion as characteristic of most severe cases
(covered by BBC News online).
Substantial immune monitoring programme (£1m philanthropic funding) in general population, addressing
questions including correlates of disease outcome, viral targets of antibodies, mechanisms of immune
escape, characterisation of protective antibody responses and risks of reinfection.
TwinsUK study: Applying the COVID-19 Symptom Tracker App to the TwinsUK registry to integrate personal
symptom reporting with the incidence of infection (PCR and antibody testing), host genetics and microbiome
profiling as a path to unravel the complex determinants of infection and disease outcomes. So far

Page 32



approximately 200 participants (twins) with self-reported COVID-19 symptoms have provided serum
samples.
CogStack: rapid, real-time analysis of patient records from major NHS Trusts using AI and Natural Language
Processing to address urgent clinical questions (pre-prints available here). Early findings include:
o

o
o

o

o

Impact of ethnicity on outcome of severe COVID-19 infection. Data from an ethnically diverse UK
tertiary centre (patients from black, Asian and minority ethnic backgrounds are significantly younger
and have different co-morbidity profiles than white individuals; there is no significant independent
effect of ethnicity on severe outcomes (death or intensive care unit admission) within 14-days of
symptom onset, after adjustment for age, sex and comorbidities.
ACE-inhibitors and Angiotensin-2 Receptor Blockers are not associated with severe SARS-COVID19
infection in a multi-site UK acute Hospital Trust.
Supplementing the National Early Warning Score (NEWS2) for anticipating early deterioration among
patients with COVID-19 infection (addition of age and a minimal set of common blood tests taken in
patients on admission to hospital significantly improves the National Early Warning Score (NEWS2)
for risk-stratification of severe COVID disease).
The effects of ARBs (Angiotensin II receptor blockers), ACEIs (Angiotensin-Converting Enzyme
Inhibitors) and statins on clinical outcomes of COVID-19 infection among nursing home residents
(statin intake in older, frail people could be associated with a considerable beneficial effect on
COVID-19 related clinical symptoms).
Risk prediction for poor outcome and death in hospital in-patients with COVID-19: derivation in
Wuhan, China and external validation in London, UK.

Social science and humanities:








COVID-19: New Survey on Misperceptions, Expectations, Attitudes and Behaviour: motivation and action will
be informed by how the public see likely future outcomes, including economic and financial impacts, where
different expectations may lead to excessive confidence or fear. Varying levels trust and confidence in
government actions and communications will also inform behaviour. This project seeks to understand these
interactions, and how they vary between sub-groups of the population.
Maximizing effectiveness of policy-based responses to COVID-19: little is known about citizen preferences
over possible dimensions and trade-offs of COVID-19 policy. This project addresses this gap for the UK by
conducting a unique online conjoint survey experiment in two waves.
Nudging public behaviour during crisis: Nudges can be an effective way to change the behaviour of all
non-symptomatic people, whose compliance is difficult to observe and enforce. For example, emphasising
reciprocity and social connections has the potential to lead to sustained behaviour change. This project will
explore when, and how, nudging may be effective in encouraging compliance with public health guidelines –
specifically handwashing, social distancing, and not stockpiling groceries.
COVID-19 and English Contract Law: analysis of decisions concerned with frustrated contracts within England
and related common law jurisdictions such as Canada, Australia and Singapore; investigation of force
majeure clauses in contracts, to provide recommendations allowing greater clarity in law.

KHP Team & King’s College London
June 2020

Page 33

Agenda Item 7

Name of Committee: Health and Wellbeing Board
Date of Committee: 02 July 2020
Lambeth Children’s Partnership update
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director: Children Services: Merlin Joseph
Portfolio: Deputy Leader of the Council, Lead Member for Children and Young People: Cllr Ed
Davie
Contact for enquiries: Latoya Boyer, Senior Policy, Equalities & Performance Officer, Policy &
Communications, 020 7926 3724 lboyer@lambeth.gov.uk
Report summary
The purpose of this report is to update the Health and Wellbeing Board on the work programme
of the Lambeth Children’s Partnership. This report covers the outcomes of the LCP
development meeting held on 10 March 2020.
Finance summary
There are no capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report.
Recommendations
(1)

To note the contents of the report.

1

Page 34
1.

Context

1.1

The Lambeth Children’s Partnership (LCP) is a sub-group of the Health and Wellbeing
Board. Its chair is the cabinet member for Families and Young People and sits on the
Health and Wellbeing Board. Some members sit on both boards. An update of the work
of the Health and Wellbeing Board is reported to the LCP via Partner updates which is a
standing item on the agenda of meetings.

1.2

The purpose of the Lambeth Children’s Partnership is to enable statutory and nonstatutory agencies to work better together for children, young people and their families,
both in planning and delivering services and thus improving outcomes for all children and
young people.

1.3

The Lambeth Children’s Partnership is the key body for driving forward the Lambeth
Children and Young People's Plan and is committed to ensure it is effective in improving
outcomes for children in the borough. It brings together all partners engaged in
children’s services throughout the borough for a strategic discussion and general
overview. The Lambeth Children’s Partnership has a strategic link to the Local
Safeguarding Children’s Board.

1.4

The Lambeth Children’s Partnership development meeting held on 10 March was
attended by:
 Cllr Jane Pickard (Delegated Chair), Councillor, Deputy Cabinet Member for
Schools
 Tony Parker, Director of Children's Commissioning & Community Safety ,
LBL/NHS Lambeth CCG
 Annie Hudson, Strategic Director, Children Services, LBL
 Harold Bennison, CAMHS Service Director, CAMHS, SLAM
 Latoya Boyer, Policy and Communications, LBL
 Alex Kubeyinje, Director, Children’s Social Care, LBL
 Michelle Hayden-Pepper, Assistant Director, Safeguarding, Children's Social
Care , LBL
 Natalia Sali, Engagement Manager, HealthWatch
 Dr Nandini Mukhopadhyay, CCG Clinical Lead: Children and Maternity, NHS
Lambeth CCG
 Dawn Persad Head Teacher, Henry Fawcett Primary School
 Adrian LeCuirot, Head Teacher, St Helen's Primary School
 Nick Butler, Principal, Saint Gabriel’s College
 DI Richard Poynter, Safeguarding Hub, South Central BCU, Metropolitan Police
 Eamann Devlin, Lead Commissioner, LBL and Lambeth CCG
 Rachel Scantlebury, Consultant in Public Health, LBL
 Sam Hunt, Policy and Communications, LBL
 Laura Griffin, Commissioning Lead – Early Years and Parenting, Children’s
Services, LBL
 Helen McAree, Parenting Lead, Children’s Services, LBL
 Bolu Heather, Children’s Services, LBL
 Dr Crispin Day , Head of the Centre for Parent and Child Support
 Leandra Box, Programme Manager, Race Equality Foundation
2

Page 35



2.

Anna Elliot, Referral Gateway Project Manager, Westminster City Council
Sarah Ingram, Programme Manager, Tavistock Relationships

Proposal and Reasons
This report has been produced as an information paper for the Health and Wellbeing
Board to provide an update on what was discussed and agreed at the Lambeth
Children’s Partnership meeting held on 10 March 2020. Health and Wellbeing Board
members are asked to note the content of the report and provide comments if
necessary. The following areas were discussed in detail at this meeting:

2.1

Programme Update Reports (Lambeth Made; Early Help; Better Start; SEND and
Children at risk of Harm)
Annie Hudson, Strategic Director, Children Services, LBL
Tony Parker, Director of Children's Commissioning & Community Safety , LBL/NHS
Lambeth CCG
Michelle Hayden-Pepper, Assistant Director, Safeguarding, Children's Social Care
(Division), LBL
Alex Kubeyinje, Director, Children’s Social Care, LBL
Laura Griffin, Commissioning Lead: Early Years and Parenting, Children’s Services, LBL

2.1.1

Lambeth Made: Lambeth Made hosted a Charter mark awards ceremony that went
very well and helped to raise its profile and build on existing partnerships.

2.1.2

Reframing Early Help: South West (SW) and South East (SE) have really good offer,
covering 3 estates. Early help practitioners continue to give advice where needed
LAPs have been set up in all areas. A Contextual harm panel has been established
Referrals are being received from agencies including from the police
A Locality manager has been recruited in the North of the borough. A nurse will be
commissioned to join the service. There are 13 vacancies in the service
Early help is looking at how outcomes will be measured
Coronavirus 19 response under consideration, including how the partnership will
respond to this.

2.1.3
2.1.4
2.1.5
2.1.6
2.1.7
2.1.8

A Better Start: The Health Visiting Service and Children Centres have been through a
lengthy redesign process. There are now 6 different better start areas attached to
schools. There are area based timetables to show residents the offer.
2.1.9 Staff have really been working hard on the ground to minimise disruption to families
following the changes
2.1.10 The service is in the process of filling posts that were not filled in restructure
2.1.11 There is an expectation that there will be national changes to health visiting.
2.1.12 Full accreditation was received from Unicef in terms of breastfeeding; involved good
working together between Health Visiting and Children Centre’s
2.1.13 Children with disabilities and special education needs: Ofsted and CQC Inspection
took place on 20th Jan.
2.1.14 General conclusions noted and observed were:
2.1.15 Lambeth knows itself well
2.1.16 Lambeth has a good ability to self-assess and evaluate
2.1.17 The reforms have made a difference to children and young people
2.1.18 Good practice is evident in meeting needs
3

Page 36
2.1.19
2.1.20
2.1.21
2.1.22

There is an improved offer from health, education and social care
Inputs from parents showed genuine coproduction
Work is needed to improve the transition to adult services and much more could be done
Work is required to identify children very early on that including those do not attend
Children Centres and Health Visiting Services.
2.1.23 Communication of the offer needs to improve
2.1.24 The Educational Health Care Plans are of good quality and are robust
2.1.25 Children at risk of harm: A peer review on adolescent safeguarding has taken place;
effective partnerships were noted as a strength. Other positives noted including work on
the serious youth violence strategy, community early help.
2.1.26 Comments and discussion:
o

o
o

Lambeth Made:
Great event that has been in the planning for several years and we hope it will be an
incentive
Early Help:
When parents call in they are signposted or Early help assess family and support needs
Promotion of the offer needs to be enhanced so families understand that they do not
need to be referred
Noted that peer review commended the early help offer in Lambeth
SEND:

o
o

o
o

There is a 12% change of population every year so this has implications for families and
schools
1 in 5 children are not accessing children centres and EYF make it a challenge for better
start work. Essentially these children are not seen early on and may have needs that go
unidentified
Parents find it difficult to navigate systems and some parents are not sure how to access
help
Lambeth may be under resourced and funding is allocated by electoral register
information

2.2 CAMHS Mental Health Schools Team (MHST) Bid
Eamann Devlin, Lead Commissioner, LBL and Lambeth CCG
2.2.1
2.2.2
2.2.1
2.2.2
2.2.3

2.2.4

Recent journey of Lambeth CAMHs:
More face to face time for staff
Performance dipped when remodelling was in full flow
CAMHs are now having 250 CYP per month up from 150 per month
CAMHS was only meeting 20% of children in need so the government set a target of
seeing 35% of children in need of CAMHs support by Jan 2021. Lambeth CAMHs have
already met this target so are on the way to exceeding this target. Waiting times have
improved and this still needs to get better
There is an aspiration to remove the need for triage to GPs so that clients access
CAMHs much quicker
4

Page 37
2.2.5
2.2.6

2.2.7

2.2.8











There will be a mapping exercise to ascertain what schools currently get in the form of
emotional/pastoral support etc.
A new bid is being worked through for Mental health schools teams (MHST bid) to
establish CAMHs in schools. There will be Emotional Well Being Practitioners placed in
schools. This will be resourced by practitioners who will receive 12 months on the job
training. Submission of Expression of Interest (EOI) is due by 20th March and this must
demonstrate strategic support from partners. If successful CAMHs will be informed by
20th April and then move to stage 2 which allows 90 days for detailed planning and
engagement with partners and schools. Schools will also be recruited at this point and
senior staff with a start date of Sept 2020 or January 2021
There will be a greater emphasis on supporting vulnerable groups, targeting health
inequalities and links to SYV in all CAMHs work going forward
Comments and discussion:
Adult urgency in getting care is far quicker than a CYP getting urgent help
A 35% target set by the government is not enough and there needs to be move to 100%
CAMHs will relocate from Civic Centre into a new school site in Brixton so it is a
community based location
An increase in CAHMs service is very much needed in North of the borough
CAMHs wants to understand more about how schools work
There are lessons to be learned from the Social Workers being based in some Lambeth
schools project.
The aim is to use existing school structures and align these so CAMHs is well embedded
into schools
CAMHs initial approach will be targeting schools that cover high need areas
Any panels should have an independent chair
Involve social care so there is learning about how different professions work together

2.3 Themed discussion: Parenting including Reducing parental conflict
Laura Griffin, Commissioning Lead – Early Years and Parenting, Children’s Services,
LBL
Helen McAree, Parenting Lead, Children’s Services, LBL
Bolu Heather, Partnership Manager Early Years and Parenting, Children’s Services,
LBL
Dr Crispin Day, Head of the Centre for Parent and Child Support
Leandra Box, Programme Manager, Race Equality Foundation
Anna Elliot, Referral Gateway Project Manager, Westminster City Council
Sarah Ingram, Programme Manager, Tavistock Relationships

2.3.1
2.3.2
2.3.3

2.3.4
2.3.5

Lambeth are ensuring a high quality, evidence based offer responsive to local need
Delivering an enhanced antenatal and early years offer within the LEAP area
The current provision of parenting programmes includes Strengthening Families,
Strengthening Communities (SFSC) and Empowering Parents, Empowering
Communities (EPEC) programmes
Empowering parents, empowering communities:
Cost effective approach that improves the scale of local parenting support.
5

Page 38
2.3.6
2.3.7

2.3.8

2.3.9
2.3.10

2.3.11
2.3.12
2.3.13

2.3.14

2.3.15
2.3.16

2.3.17
2.3.18

Focussed on improving access, reach & participation of socially disadvantaged and
minoritized families & communities.
Uses effective, tested manualised content & methods demonstrated to improve
parenting & child outcomes, family well-being, build social & community
connectedness.
Builds parents’ knowledge, parenting skills, emotional capacity, parent-child and
family relationships. It also builds social relationships and capital for parents,
families and communities
The programme recruits, trains & supports local parents to lead EPEC parenting
courses in their communities
There are 3 core group programmes: Being a Parent (2-11yrs); Living with
Teenagers (11-16yrs) and Baby & Us (0-1yr). There are additional programmes for
families with children affected by ASD, ADHD, parental mental health difficulties,
parental couple conflict, living in homeless accommodation, foster carers.
There is strong evidence that EPEC programmes make a difference and have a real
impact on parenting and children’s well being
Strengthening Families, Strengthening Communities Parent Programme:
Quality assured 13 weeks structured group programme with strategies for improving
relationships with 5 areas of competency: Family, ethnic, cultural, spiritual,
Enhancing relationships, Discipline, Rites of passage and community,
Outcomes of the programme include increased confidence in their parenting abilities;
an improvement in parent-child relationships; an improvement in their ability to
identify and limit risk factors; decreased use of harsh discipline methods, such as
shouting and physical punishment; increased positive communication methods;
better knowledge of and confidence in contacting agencies for support (including
police) and enhanced children’s self esteem, self-discipline and social competencies
Building Relationships for Stronger Families programme will become part of the
Lambeth offer and has a tiered modular training offer for the workforce.
The premise of the programme adopts is that some degree of conflict is normal
within relationships but where conflict between parents is frequent, intense and
poorly resolved, it can harm children’s outcomes
This programme takes a deep dive into the relationship between the parents whether
together or separated.
Interventions are delivered by Tavistock Relationships

Comments and discussion:
 How do people refer? The team matches families to the relevant programme and any
organisation can refer. Self-referrals are also encouraged
 How are we advertising this within the council so colleagues and other teams are
aware?
 How does Social care refer so SW does not need to do all the work with families?
Meetings are happening with Early help and a weekly briefing goes out every Friday for
social care so this is an ideal space to advertise
 How can these programme get out to schools, youth clubs and VCS?
 Is there a criteria for parents who attend courses? Any connection to Lambeth i.e., live
in Lambeth, attend a Lambeth school or one parent lives in Lambeth

6

Page 39
3

Finance

3.1
There are no capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report. It
should be noted that service planning has been undertaken with consideration of the current
funding available and takes account of the Council’s medium term financial strategy.
4.

Legal and Democracy

4.1
There are no legal comments arising from this report but specific legal advice may be
provided as required.

5. Consultation and co-production
5.1
The report provides an update for the Health and Wellbeing Board. Consultation has
been carried out for many of the projects discussed by the LCP board.

6. Risk management
6.1

None

7. Equalities impact assessment
7.1
The report provides an update for the Health and Wellbeing Board. An Equality Impact
Assessment has not been produced for the purpose of this report but will be produced for many
of the projects discussed by the LCP at this meeting.

8. Community safety
8.1

None

9. Organisational implications
9.1
Staffing and accommodation
None

10. Health
10.1

None

11. Timetable for implementation
11.1

The next meeting of the LCP is Tuesday 7 July 2020

7

Page 40
Audit trail
Consultation
Name/Position

Lambeth
cluster/division or
partner
Deputy Leader of the
Council, Lead Member
for Children and Young
People

Date Sent

Merlin Joseph

Strategic Director
Children Services

05.05.2020

Abi Onaboye

Director, Children's
Commissioning and
Community Safety

05.05.2020

Dan Stoten

Assistant Director of
Children’s
Commissioning

05.05.2020

Rachel Harrison
Andrew Pavlou
Adrian Bentley
Grace Gbadmosi

Finance
Legal Services
Democratic Services
Policy and
Communications

15.06.2020
15.06.2020
15.06.2020
05.05.2020

Councillor Ed Davie

Date
Received

05.05.2020

09.06.2020

Comments in
para:
(NB – Member
has recently
taken on this
role and was
not in
attendance at
the March
meeting that
this report
refers to)
(NB – Officer
has recently
taken on this
role and was
not in
attendance at
the March
meeting that
this report
refers to)
(NB - Officer
has recently
taken over this
role and was
not in
attendance at
the March
meeting that
this report
refers to)
(NB- Officer
not in
attendance at
the meeting
this report
refers to)

22.06.2020
17.06.2020
Throughout

Report history
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Report no.
8

Page 41
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons

Yes/No

Background information

None

Appendices

None

No
N/a
N/a

9

This page is intentionally left blank

